
Construction Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Friday, May 31, 2013 
4:00 PM, Conference Room A 
City Hall 

 City of South Haven 
                                                                      

 

              
 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Roll Call 
 

3. Election of Chair and Vice Chair 
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Approval of Minutes – September 13, 2011 
 

6. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 
335 Center Street 

 
8. Adjourn 

 

 
 
 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 

May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 1 of 39 



Construction Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Wednesday, September 14, 2011 
4:00 p.m., Conference Room A 
City Hall, South Haven, MI  
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. The meeting was called to Order by Lewis at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
 Present: Lundgren, Morse, Lewis 
 Absent:  None 
 
 Also present: Linda Anderson, Director of Planning & Zoning; Ross Rogien, Building 

Inspector; Ken Fairbanks, interested neighbor of subject property 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
 Motion by Lundgren, second by Lewis to approve the agenda as presented. All in favor. 

Motion carried. 
 
4. Approval of Minutes – October 27, 2010 

 
Motion by Lundgren, second by Morse to approve the minutes with the following correction: 
 
 Page 3, second paragraph from the bottom. Replace “Morris” with “Morse”.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 

None at this time. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
6.  229 Elkenburg Street 
 

Background Information: Enforcement efforts for the dilapidated accessory structure at 
229 Elkenburg date back to June of 2009. Since that time, several attempts have been 
made to work with the owner with little success. Code enforcement staff went so far as to 
issue citations, which were subsequently ignored. Finally, on July 17, 2011, the city building 
inspector contacted the hearing officer to set a meeting.  

May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 2 of 39 



CBA 
09-14-2011 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
DRAFT 

 
 
 
Hearing Officer’s Order:  
 
That the accessory structure on the subject property be demolished pursuant to the City’s 
Demolition Specifications by September 9, 2011. 
 
Support Material: 
 
1. Hearing Officer’s Order and support documents (Attachments A & B) 
2. Repair Cost Comparison Sheet to State Equalized Value of Structure 
3. Notice to property owner of appeal of Hearing Officer’s Order to CBA 
4. Photos 
 
Rogien noted that the subject building has been a problem for three to four years; the City 
has been unable to make contact with the owner during that time. The owner did contact 
Anderson just recently and indicated he would tear the structure down on his own. The City 
is moving ahead regardless because of the owner’s lack of response in the past. Rogien 
does not have much confidence that it would get torn down. Rogien noted that there has 
been loose sheeting on the roof for at least two years; there is now a 20’ x 20’ hole 
collapsing into the building. Rogien also noted that the exterior walls are out of plumb eight 
to ten inches and the building has barrels inside with unknown contents. Before demolition 
begins the fire department will have to do a preliminary inspection. Assuming the owner is 
not going to demolish the structure, the City is continuing to move ahead.  
 
Lewis asked who would foot the bill for hazardous waste removal. Anderson stated that if 
the owner does not demolish it, the City will foot the bill for demolition and hazardous waste 
removal, if necessary, with the expense then going on the owner’s property taxes as a lien. 
Rogien will consult the Fire Marshall, Marsala, because if the barrels are not labeled, testing 
will need to be done. Rogien noted that the main structure was an old picture frame factory. 
Lewis noted there would have been thinners and solvents used for their processes. Rogien 
stated that the owner knew he would have to check on the barrels; between Rogien and 
Code Enforcement Officer Dan Gomez, the City will try to keep an eye on the structure and 
hopefully keep someone from removing the barrels and disposing of them improperly.  
 
Neighbor Fairbanks noted he would be happy to see the building go away, as that is the 
view from his bedroom and other windows.  
 
Motion by Lundgren to order the demolition of the storage building on the west side of the 
property at 229 Elkenburg with a twenty-one (21) day time limit. Second by Morse. All in 
favor. Motion carried.  
  
Planning Director Anderson noted that this motion moves the process to the next step but 
subsequent steps will all take time.       

 
7.   Adjourn 
 

Motion by Lundgren, second by Morse to adjourn at 4:07 p.m. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 3 of 39 



 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 

Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 4 of 39 



Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

May 13, 2013 

Construction Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #7 

335 Center Street 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information:  
 
Enforcement efforts for the dilapidated structure at 335 Center Street date back to 2006. In 
2011, the city filed in court either demolish the structure or compel the owner to make the 
needed repairs. The owner subsequently made the repairs needed and the building was 
allowed to remain. There have been no additional attempts at maintenance of the building.  
 
In February of 2012, the city code enforcement officer sent a notice of infraction to the property 
owner ordering that the building be brought up to code. There was no response to the letter. 
Since that time, the city has made considerable effort, including several registered letters which 
have been returned unaccepted, to work with the property owner to bring the structure into 
compliance with both the zoning and construction codes. All attempts have been ignored. 
 
On April 5, 2013, amid complaints of falling glass and shingles, the city building official posted 
the building as Dangerous (Copy attached) and ordered that it be secured to halt the falling 
debris. The city public works department also placed yellow tape and barrier cones around the 
property. 
 
On April 14, a registered letter was sent to the property owner (attached) notifying him of a 
Dangerous Building Hearing set for April 26, 2013 at 2:24 PM. He did not accept the letter and 
did not attend the hearing.  
 
The following week the property owner and the realtor handling the property met with the zoning 
administrator to discuss the building condition. The property owner stated that he would like the 
city to demolish the building. The following week a letter was received to that affect (attached). 
The property owner was told that it would be better and less costly for him to demolish the 
building, but he preferred to have the city complete the task. 
 
Before the city is allowed to demolish a private building, there are several requirements which 
need to be completed, according to City Code 570. The Construction Board of Appeals meeting 
is one of those requirements. 
 
Hearing Officer’s Order: 
 
On April 26, 2013, the city hearing officer ordered the building demolished. . 
 
Support Material: 
 

 Code violation (Infraction) letter dated 2.9.2012 

May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 5 of 39 



Planning Commission 
Staff Report 

May 13, 2013 

 Copy of Dangerous Building Notice posted on building 
 Letter requesting building be secured 
 Notice of Hearing 
 Returned Notice of Hearing 
 Hearing Officer Decision and Order 
 Letter from property owner authorizing demolition 
 Cost comparison/building condition report from John Brush (2) 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 

May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 6 of 39 



 
 
 

City of South Haven
City Hall • 539 Phoenix Street • South Haven, Michigan 49090-1499 

Telephone (269) 637-0700 • Fax (269) 637-5319 

 

 

 

 

 

 

02/09/2012 

STORY BARRY E         

335 CENTER ST 

SOUTH HAVEN, MI  49090 

 

Regarding: Notification of Code Infraction 

 

Dear Property Owner; 

 

The City of South Haven asks that you please be aware of the condition of your property at all times, and 

that you make proper arrangements for the maintenance of it. The quality of life within all of our 

neighborhoods depends on the cooperation of every property owner. Please be aware that a Code 

Infraction has been observed at your property identified below as the subject property. The specific Code 

Infraction is listed below and you, as the property owner of record, are the legally responsible party for 

correcting the infraction. Said infraction needs to be corrected immediately.  

Subject Property: 335 CENTER ST,SOUTH HAVEN 

Tax Parcel Number: 80-53-503-006-00 

Code Infraction: STRUCTURE ON PROPERTY HAS NOT BEEN MAINTAINED PROPERLY AND 

MUST BE REPAIRED / BROUGHT BACK INTO COMPLIANCE WITH ALL CURRENT 

MICHIGAN BUILDING CODES OR BE DEMOLISHED. (ORD. 570) 

     1. BELL TOWER  NEEDS  REFOOFING AND PAIINTING.  

Subsequently, you are required to contact the code enforcement official at the number below no later than 

ten (10) calendar days from the date of this letter.  Should there be no substantive response from you by 

that time, the City shall move forward with enforcement proceedings which may include the issuance of a 

"Civil Infraction Notice of Violation" involving a $50.00 per day fine, and all costs associated with the 

City having to hire appropriate services to correct said infraction as well as a $50.00 administrative fee. 

There shall be no further notifications from the City prior to these corrective actions being taken.  

Therefore, it is incumbent upon you to correct the infraction and contact the code enforcement official 

within the ten (10) calendar days to avoid any fines.  

We thank you in advance for your cooperation in correcting this infraction. 

 

Respectfully, 

 

 

 

DANIEL M. GOMEZ 

Code Enforcement Officer, Building Services Department (269) 637-0763 

 

May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 7 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 8 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 9 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 10 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 11 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 12 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 13 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 14 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 15 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 16 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 17 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 18 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 19 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 20 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 21 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 22 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 23 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 24 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 25 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 26 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 27 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 28 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 29 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 30 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 31 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 32 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 33 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 34 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 35 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 36 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 37 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 38 of 39 



May 31, 2013 
Construction Board of Appeals Agenda 
Page 39 of 39 


	05-31-2013 CBA Agenda
	09-14-2011 CBA Minutes draft
	Minutes pg. 2
	Minutes pg. 3

	#7. Staff Report -- 335 Center Street
	Staff Report pg 2

	Code Infraction Notice Ltr. 02-29-2012
	Photos by Code Enforcement officer
	Photos pg. 2
	Photos pg. 3
	Photos pg. 4
	Photos pg. 5
	Photos pg. 6
	Photos pg. 7
	Photos pg. 8
	Photos pg. 9
	Photos pg. 10
	Photos pg. 11
	Photos pg. 12

	Dangerous Building Posting
	Order to Board Up Building 04-05-2013
	Invoice to Board up Building
	Invoice pg. 2

	Notice of Dangerous Bldg Hearing 
	Returned Notice of Hearing
	04-12-2013 Hearing Officer's Notice
	Hearing Officer's Decision & Order
	Decision & Order pg. 2

	Story Request for City to Demolish
	John Brush Report 
	Brush Report pg.2
	Brush Report pg 3
	Brush photos
	Brush photo pg 2
	Brush photo pg.3
	Brush photo pg. 4
	Brush photo pg 5
	Brush photo pg 6
	Brush photo pg 7




